
Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – February 01, 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

PUBLIC SAFETY, HEALTH, AND ENVIRONMENT 

COMMITTEE 

COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 01, 2021 AT 4:00 PM 

AGENDA 

The meeting will be held at City Hall Council Chambers, 300 W. Main St, Grand Prairie, Texas.  Some 

or all of the council members may participate remotely via video conference. 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. January 4, 2021 Public Safety, Health and Environment Meeting Minutes 

2. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement (STEP) 

grant from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for the enforcement of safety 

belt, child safety seat, speed, intersection traffic control, distracted driving and DWI laws in the 

amount of $309,849.57. 

3. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a STEP Commercial Vehicle Enforcement grant 

from the TxDOT, Texas Department of Transportation, to conduct commercial motor vehicle 

enforcement in the amount of $58,717.19. 

4. Price Agreement for 150 12-gauge less lethal shotguns from Kiesler Police Supply, in the 

amount of $60,162.00. 

5. 22nd Quarterly Judicial Report 

6. Rental Assistance Update Presentation 

7. Garbage and Recycling Collection Service Delivery Survey 

8. Short Term Rentals  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 

551, Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

1



Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – February 01, 2021   Page 2 of 2 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in 

participating in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 972 237 8018 or 

email Jennifer Stubbs (jstubbs@gptx.org) at least three (3) business days prior to the scheduled meeting 

to request an accommodation. 

Certification 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Public Safety, 

Health, and Environment Committee agenda was prepared and posted January 28, 2021. 

 

 

Jennifer Stubbs, Deputy City Secretary 

 

 

2



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Lana Yancey 

PRESENTER: Jeff Copeland, Chairman 

TITLE: January 4, 2021 Public Safety, Health and Environment Meeting 

Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Minutes Attached. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

Item 1.



 

PUBLIC SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
January 4, 2021 

The Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee meeting was called to order Committee Member at 4:16 p.m. on 
January 4, 2021 at Grand Prairie City Hall, Council Briefing Room; 300 W. Main St., Grand Prairie, Texas.  
 

Attendees: 

Committee Member Cole Humphreys and Chairman John Lopez were present. Staff members present: Deputy City 

Manager Steve Dye, City Manager Assistant Andrew Fortune, Deputy City Attorney Mark Dempsey, Assistant City 

Attorney Tiffany Bull, Police Chief Daniel Scesney, Police Communications Manager Aubry Insco, and Recording 

Secretary Lana Yancey.  

 

Consider Minutes of December 7, 2020 

Committee Member Cole Humphreys motioned to approve the minutes as presented, Chairman John Lopez is in favor. 

Minutes passed as presented. 

 

Implementation of the “Text to 9-1-1” initiative (Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG911) digital technologies) - Presented by 

Aubry Insco 

Text to 911 was implemented by Tarrant County 911 on November 3rd, 2020. Now any phone call that would normally 

come into our Communications Center can be served by text as well. We will always prefer phone calls to 911 instead of 

text to 911, just for the human interaction and touch to reassure the caller that we have help on the way. Text to 911 

has always been an option to some service providers but it requires a subscription and setup. This new text to 911 

initiative is available to everyone without restriction of service provider and does not require a subscription. Texting 911 

can significantly help those in dire situations where they are unable to make a phone call. This may also be very helpful 

for callers who are hard of hearing, deaf or unable to speak. Tarrant County 911 has created a short “Call if you can, text 

if you can’t” PSA to get the word out about the text to 911 availability. This PSA can be translated to Spanish and 

Vietnamese and shared with the Spanish speaking and Vietnamese speaking communities in the near future but has 

already been shared on our website and social media accounts in English. The items that text to 911 cannot receive is 

emojis, photos, video or video chat. Some other agencies in the North are implementing video calling, and although that 

is in the realm of possibility with our technology, we are not implementing that right now. We are trying to be clear in 

text and make sure we are getting important information. Regarding translating text to 911, we will use google translate 

as we have 40% of our population who speaks Spanish. We understand that Google Translate is not 100% accurate in 

the type of Spanish that most speak, we believe that it will hit the mark on what the texter is needing and get the proper 

help to them. In bringing this technology to Grand Prairie it didn’t cost the city anything. Tarrant County 911 funded this 

entire initiative in training the communications specialist and the software. Upon implementing this technology Tarrant 

County 911 did a study on statistics in order make sure our Communications Center would not be overwhelmed and  

 

 
4

Item 1.



Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee Meeting               Pg. 2 

 

found that only 2% of people use text to 911 which would be 5 text message per day. We are amply staffed to take care 

of these text messages. Text to 911 came into conversations when the Columbine shootings happened because the 

phone lines got overloaded and at times it is safer for some to text instead of call. Deputy City Manager Steve Dye asked 

about transferring text messages to different agencies just in case the caller has an emergency in a different city. Mrs. 

Insco explained that yes, we can transfer to other agencies and if that agency has text to 911 technology the entire text 

conversation will be visible. Communication Specialists also stay on the line to explain to the oncoming agency calltaker 

what is going on, just in case that agency doesn’t have the text to 911 technology. When using text to 911 it shows the 

location of the person needing help. Since we went live with this technology, we have received five text messages, in 

which three were training, one accidental and one did need something. The Committee appreciated the information on 

text to 911. No further discussion. 

 

Short Term Rentals - Presented by Steve Collins, Code Compliance Manager, and Mark Dempsey, Deputy City 

Attorney 

Deputy City Attorney Mark Dempsey briefed the committee on his part of this agenda item. He referenced the Short-

Term Rental Ordinance that was created in 2018 and how every property should be registered with the city. Registration 

requires contact information for all owners of the property be listed and to be updated when any change is made and 

requires payment of hotel/motel occupancy taxes. After this ordinance passed there was very little compliance, so it was 

decided by City Council to hire a 3rd party contractor in June of 2020. This 3rd party contractor is in the process of 

obtaining all locations of short-term rental properties and reporting that to the city monthly along with mailing 

notifications to these locations. Code Compliance Manager Steve Collins has been working with the 3rd party contractor 

to get this program up and running and to figure out all properties that are or are not in compliance. Deputy City 

Manager Steve Dye was made aware during today’s meeting that Mr. Collins was unable to attend last minute. Mr. Dye 

did explain that we have done a lot to get these short-term rentals under control. The Police Department has these 

addresses tagged in their computer system so that when and if we are called out on a noise complaint or anything there 

is zero tolerance policy. Unfortunately, we don’t know where these properties are if they do not register.  We think that 

the 3rd party contractor has access to the short-term rentals systems and can gain access to the private sector. We think 

that the 3rd party contractor fee is around $23,000 annually. We are going to give this process some time and if we can’t 

gain access to a lot or all short-term rental locations, we will reevaluate. We are going to table this agenda item for now 

so that Mr. Steve Collins can attend and update us on his progress. Committee Member John Lopez asked if it was 

possible to include houses that are posted on Facebook for weekend rentals in their monthly reports to the city. Short 

Term Rentals cannot be separately zoned. Committee Member Cole Humphreys asked if we ever received information 

on court cases regarding cities and short-term rentals. That information will be included in the next discussion we have 

on short-term rentals. No further discussion. 

 

Ratify Application for Texas Emergency Rental Assistance Program grant funding in the amount of $363,210.74 for the 

purpose of administering rental assistance to eligible applicants in Grand Prairie through a third-party administrator; 

Authorize City Manager to accept grant if awarded 

City Manager Assistant Andrew Fortune briefed the committee on this agenda item. With the Eviction Moratorium 

quickly coming to an end on December 31st, the Federal Government extended it to January 31, 2021.  Texas 

Department of Housing and Community Affairs contacted us about additional grant funds available for rental assistance, 

so we have submitted paperwork and are awaiting approval for additional funds. In December Grand Prairie United 

Charities (GPUC) has stayed true to the budget that was put in place by this committee. We were able to assist 82 clients 

and an additional 38 clients through other resources. There is still $157,000 in funding available and if approved we will  

 

5

Item 1.



Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee Meeting                                  Pg. 3 

 

receive an additional $363,210.74 in which we should have an answer by the middle of January. The executive director 

of GPUC has made some good calls and made sure that clients are making an effort to pay their bills and can show 

documentation that they have been economically impacted. The new funds allow us to pay six months of rent per client, 

and we can also pay up to 3 months of unpaid rent for our clients. These funds have federal and state mandates with 

strict eligibility requirements, and they are different depending on what county the client lives in. GPUC will continue to 

manage these funds if this committee feels comfortable with that. We are also looking into partnering with Lifeline 

Shelter for eligible clients with children, which is their mission to address homelessness. We are going to use the new 

federal funds if awarded first to be able to stretch what we already have a few more months. We will soon do some 

marketing outreach in English and Spanish to make sure that residents know that this help is available. Texas Emergency 

Diversion Program information will also be sent out to let residents know it is available and we will be giving referrals. 

The documentation that is accepted to prove economic impact of COVID-19 is bank statements for the past two months, 

sick leave for 14 days or longer if they had to take time off or had to stay home with kids to home school. Committee 

Member John Lopez asked if we can send a reminder to Commissioner Allen’s office, so they know that these resources 

are available in Grand Prairie. He also asked if we should put more restrictions on the funds that we are giving out via 

GPUC, or what is your guidance on what we should do. The recommendation of staff with GPUC and Lifeline is to use the 

new funds if granted which would stretch the funds we previously were using a little longer. Today we are asking for 

support to accept these grant funds to assist our residents which these funds are at no cost to the city. Humphreys 

motions to approve and John Lopez seconds. No further discussion. 

 

Review of Smoking Ordinance - Presented by Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager 
Deputy City Manager Steve Dye advised that we are going to table this agenda item for a future meeting due to timing. If 

we were to make any changes it may put more stress on our businesses in Grand Prairie. Staff proactively brought this 

item to this committee. This ordinance was created in 2014 and we may want to make some changes to it which we 

would then need to bring to City Council Meeting for approval. This would also be an initiative to a healthier 

environment for our citizens. I would like to have all committee members present with this discussion as well. The 

Community Revitalization Unit is working right now to bring outdoor seating to restaurants on Main Street and maybe 

some in Epic West, and this will have some effect on the smoking ordinance in the future. No further discussion. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 5:08 p.m. 

 

 

Executive Session 

There was no executive session. 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

John Lopez, Chairman 

 

 

6

Item 1.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police 

TITLE: 
 

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic 

Enforcement (STEP) grant from the Texas Department of 

Transportation (TxDOT) for the enforcement of safety belt, child safety 

seat, speed, intersection traffic control, distracted driving and DWI laws 

in the amount of $309,849.57. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The results of special statewide traffic enforcement efforts in Texas and other states confirm that 

coordinated programs, such as the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP), are highly effective in 

reducing traffic-related fatalities, injuries and costs.   

 

The Grand Prairie Police Department has participated in the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program for 

30 years. The total grant money addresses primarily seatbelt, child safety seat, speeding, intersection 

traffic control, and DWI laws.  

 

From October 2019 through August 2020, the TxDOT STEP Grant has resulted in the following grant-

related citation totals: speeding violations 9071; seatbelt use violations 338; unrestrained child violations 

241; intersection control devices violations 1964.  The total number of citations issued as part of the grant 

program from October 2019 through September 2020 was 19334, which includes the above totals and 

non-hazardous violations.   

The Selective Traffic Enforcement Program benefits the citizens of Grand Prairie by increasing safety 

belt compliance and reducing the number of crashes caused by excessive speed, disregarding traffic 

control devices, and alcohol consumption.   

 

The Public Safety, Health and Environmental Committee reviewed this item on February 1, 2021 and 

recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council for approval. 

 

 

7

Item 2.



Page 2 of 3 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

The grant period begins October 1, 2021 and ends September 30, 2022.  It is anticipated the total cost for 

the City during this period will amount to a cash match of $186,058.14.  Funding will be allocated in the 

FY 2021 General Fund budget.  The Texas Department of Transportation will fund $123,791.43 to pay 

the City for overtime salaries and benefits for enforcement efforts.  Project cost will total $309,849.57.  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A TEXAS 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION GRANT FOR SAFETY BELT, CHILD SAFETY 

SEAT, SPEED, INTERSECTION TRAFFIC CONTROL, AND DWI ENFORCEMENT IN THE 

AMOUNT OF 309,849.57 TO BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND APPROVAL. 
 

WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Police Department wishes to participate in an intensified enforcement of 

safety belt, child safety seat, speed, intersection traffic control and DWI laws; 

 

WHEREAS, the City will provide a cash match of $186,058.14 to the Texas Department of 

Transportation;   

 

WHEREAS, in the event of loss or misuse of Texas Department of Transportation funds, the City of 

Grand Prairie assures that the funds will be returned to the Texas Department of Transportation in full; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  the City Manager of the City of Grand Prairie is empowered to accept, reject, alter or 

terminate this grant on behalf of the City Council; 

 

SECTION 2.  this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 2ND DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

Item 2.



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 1 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
11

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 2 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
12

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 3 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
13

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 4 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
14

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 5 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
15

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 6 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
16

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 7 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
17

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 8 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
18

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 9 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
19

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 10 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
20

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 11 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
21

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 12 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
22

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 13 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
23

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 14 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
24

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 15 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
25

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 16 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
26

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 17 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
27

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 18 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
28

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 19 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
29

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 20 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
30

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 21 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
31

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 22 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
32

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 23 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
33

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 24 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
34

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 25 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
35

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 26 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
36

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 27 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
37

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 28 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
38

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 29 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
39

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 30 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
40

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 31 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
41

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 32 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
42

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 33 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
43

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 34 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
44

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 35 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
45

Item 2.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 36 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
46

Item 2.



47

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 1 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
48

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 2 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
49

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 3 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
50

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 4 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
51

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 5 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
52

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 6 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
53

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 7 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
54

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 8 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
55

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 9 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
56

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 10 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
57

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 11 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
58

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 12 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
59

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 13 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
60

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 14 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
61

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 15 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
62

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 16 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
63

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 17 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
64

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 18 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
65

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 19 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
66

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 20 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
67

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 21 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
68

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 22 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
69

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 23 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
70

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 24 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
71

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 25 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
72

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 26 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
73

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 27 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
74

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 28 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
75

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 29 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
76

Item 3.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 30 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
77

Item 3.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police 

TITLE: 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a STEP Commercial 

Vehicle Enforcement grant from the TxDOT, Texas Department of 

Transportation, to conduct commercial motor vehicle enforcement in the 

amount of $58,717.19. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The City of Grand Prairie covers 81.4 square miles, is the 5th largest city in the Metroplex in land mass, 

and is situated in three counties (Dallas, Tarrant, and Ellis).  The City has a growing population of over 

180,000 residents and provides emergency response service for two major Interstate Highways (I-20 and 

I-30), three State Highways (SH 360, SH 180, and SH 161), US Hwy 287, and Spur Hwy 303.  Grand 

Prairie is a central and connecting City facilitating millions of large commercial vehicles each year.  The 

City's industrial districts house some of the largest distributors in the country.  Approximately 30 percent 

of the City's property tax value is industrial and commercial. 

 

The mission of the Grand Prairie Police Department’s Traffic Unit in relationship to commercial motor 

vehicle’s is to enforce the laws of the State of Texas and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations to 

help ensure the safe and efficient movement of commercial traffic traveling the highways and local streets 

within the City.  Through effective enforcement and interaction with the trucking industry and citizens, 

the police department's goal is to reduce commercial vehicle crashes and the number of unsafe vehicles 

operating on the roadways.   

 

The GPPD’s Traffic Unit’s goal is to also promote detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle 

safety defects, commercial vehicle driver deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices before they 

become contributing factors to crashes and hazardous materials incidents.  This should thereby contribute 

to the reduction of commercial vehicle crashes in the City.  Due to the large volume of warehouse, 

industrial, and commercial space in the City, the unit plans to address the growing Metroplex problem of 

Commercial Motor Vehicle thefts and cargo thefts.  The unit, in anticipation of proactively addressing 

cargo thefts, is applying for additional funds in this grant for that purpose.   

 

The Public Safety, Health, and Environmental Committee reviewed this item on February 1, 2021 and 

recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council for approval. 

 

78

Item 3.



Page 2 of 3 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

The grant period begins October 1, 2021 and ends September 30, 2022.  It is anticipated the total cost for 

the City during this period will amount to a cash match of $11,825.60.  Funding will be allocated in the 

FY 2021 General Fund budget.  The Texas Department of Transportation will fund $46,891.89 to pay the 

City for overtime salaries and benefits for enforcement efforts.  Project cost will total $58,717.49.   

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A TxDOT 

GRANT GRAND PRAIRIE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S TRAFFIC UNIT TO CONDUCT 

COMMERCIAL MOTOR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS, CONDUCT PUBLIC AWARENESS 

CAMPAIGNS IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,717.49. 

 

WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Police Department wishes to apply for funding this opportunity to promote 

detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle safety defects, commercial vehicle driver 

deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices before they become contributing factors to crashes and 

hazardous materials incidents; 

 

WHEREAS, the City will provide a cash match of $11,825.60 to the Texas Department of Transportation;   

 

WHEREAS, in the event of loss or misuse of TxDot funds, the City of Grand Prairie assures that the 

funds will be returned; 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, does hereby authorize the City 

Manager to apply for a grant in the amount $58,717.49 to promote detection and correction of commercial 

motor vehicle safety defects, commercial vehicle driver deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices 

before they become contributing factors to crashes and hazardous materials incidents. 

 

SECTION 2.  this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 2nd DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79

Item 3.



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police 

TITLE: Price Agreement for 150 12-gauge less lethal shotguns from Kiesler 

Police Supply, in the amount of $60,162.00. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The Grand Prairie Police Department serves a City that is situated within an exponentially growing Dallas 

- Fort Worth region.  The combination of urban, suburban, commercial, and industrial growth in this 

region necessitates a vibrant, progressive, and well-trained police department that understands and 

respects the need to continually enhance its effectiveness in providing a safe environment for its citizens, 

visitors, and officers in a mutual partnership.   

 

The Grand Prairie Police Department functions under the guiding principle of the “sanctity of life” and 

based on current research in the area of use of force incidents, it is vital that police officers be equipped 

with technology that affords them the ability to respond to dangerous encounters with viable options.  One 

such viable response option is when the line-level patrol officer is equipped with the less-lethal shotgun.  

A less-lethal shotgun affords officers the ability to respond safely to dangerous situations while also 

protecting the lives of individuals who may pose a danger to themselves or others.  Staff therefore 

recommends that less-lethal patrol shotguns be purchased to equip each line-level patrol officer.  

 

Notice of bid #21004 was advertised in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and Public Purchase; it was 

distributed to twenty-seven vendors. There was one Grand Prairie vendor available for this commodity.  

Four bids were received as shown on attachment A.  

 

The award was based on best value criteria set up in the specification, including material markup, 

reputation, quality of service, price, past relationship with the city and other municipalities, if they were 

local, and other relevant criteria as listed in the specification.  

 

Kiesler Police Supply meets specifications and is recommended for award.   

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funds are available in the Police Department State Asset Forfeiture Fund.  

81

Item 4.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82

Item 4.



BID OPTION #2 BID OPTION #1

Jeffersonville, IN Lafayette, LA Prescott, AZ Jeffersonville, IN
Evaluation Criteria Maximum Score Score Score Score Score
Price 60.00 60.00 52.27 
Lead Time 25.00 25.00 21.88 
Past experience with the City of Grand 
Prairie or another municipality 10.00 9.60 10.00 

Local Business Presence 5.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 100.00 94.60 84.14 Rejected Rejected

 

Bid Tabulator:
Bid Open Date:

Bids were publically opened and read at the City of Grand Prairie Office of the Purchasing Division at the time indicated above.  The bid 
tabulation has been verified, by tabulator, as accurate based on the Unit Cost presented by each bidder.

Kiesler Police 
Supply

Bid Option #1 - 
Only bid the orange 

stock and forend 
grips for the 

Remington model; 
no bids received for 

the Remington 
model shotgun

Notes Bid Option #2
Complete and accurate bid

Kiesler Police 
Supply

Proforce Law 
EnforcementBarney's Inc

Anda Upchurch
Monday, November 16, 2020

RFB #  21004
Less-Lethal Shotguns

Evaluation Score Card

Did not bid the orange 
stock and forend grips 

for the Mossberg model, 
which are necessary to 

designate these as "less-
lethal" weapons

83

Item 4.



Item Description QTY UOM Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1 12ga shotgun 150.00 EA 316.37             47,455.50        369.59     55,438.50        334.47     50,170.50        No Bid

2 Hogue less-lethal orange stock and 
forend grip 150.00 EA 55.61               8,341.50          51.96       7,794.00          No Bid 55.61       8,341.50          

3 Tac-Star Slimline side saddle shotgun 
shell holder 150.00 EA 29.10               4,365.00          28.00       4,200.00          23.40       3,510.00          29.10       4,365.00          

Total Base-Bid: 60,162.00$      67,432.50$      53,680.50$      12,706.50$      
Add Alternate:

Item Description QTY UOM Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

4 Pre-assemble the stock, forend grip, 
and shell holder onto the gun 150.00 EA No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

5 12ga shotgun 50.00   EA 319.32             15,966.00        369.59     18,479.50        334.47     16,723.50        No Bid

6 Hogue less-lethal orange stock and 
forend grip 50.00   EA 56.65               2,832.50          51.96       2,598.00          No Bid 55.61       2,780.50          

7 Tac-Star Slimline side saddle shotgun 
shell holder 50.00   EA 29.63               1,481.50          28.00       1,400.00          24.10       1,205.00          29.10       1,455.00          

8 Pre-assemble the stock, forend grip, 
and shell holder onto the gun 50.00   EA No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Total Add-Alternate: 20,280.00$      22,477.50$      17,928.50$      4,235.50$        

Grand Total: 80,442.00$      89,910.00$      71,609.00$      16,942.00$      

69,268.00$      79,518.00$      71,609.00$      NA

Low bid
Max Score

Jeffersonville, INPrescott, AZLafayette, LA

Remington (accessories only)Mossberg #50778Mossberg #50778

Kiesler Police SupplyProforce Law EnforcementBarney's Inc

BID OPTION #1
REJECT - Unable to obtain the 

Remington model for these 
accessories.

BID OPTION #2

Kiesler Police Supply

Remington (accessories only)Mossberg #50778

Kiesler Police SupplyKiesler Police Supply

Total of items for Scoring (does not include the stock and forend grip)

Proforce Law EnforcementBarney's Inc

Mossberg #50778Mossberg #50778

REJECT - Did not bid the 
orange stock and forend grips, 

which are required for these less-
lethal shotguns

Bid Tabulation
Less-Lethal Shotguns

RFB #  21004

$69,268.00

52.27

Brand/Model:

$69,268.00 NA$79,518.00
Score

Lafayette, LA

Mossberg #50778Brand/Model:

Base Bid:

BID OPTION #2

BID OPTION #1
REJECT - Unable to obtain the 

Remington model for these 
accessories.

Less-Lethal Shotguns
RFB #  21004

Price Evaluation

 NA
60.00

Total Bid
Vendor

REJECT - Did not bid the 
orange stock and forend grips, 
which are required for these 

less-lethal shotguns

60.00

Price FORMULA: The bidder with the lowest price receives the maximum score. The bidder with the next lowest price receives
points based on dividing its price into the lowest price and multiplying that percentage by the available points.

For example: Assume 50 points is the max score. Next, assume that $50,000 is the low offer. That bidder would receive 50 points
for price ($50,000/$50,000 = 1.00 x 50 = 50). Assume $55,000 is the next low offer, then that bidder would receive 45.455 points
($50,000/$55,000 = 0.9091 x 50 = 45.455), etc.

84

Item 4.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Olivia Tucker 

PRESENTER: Bryan S. Arnold, Presiding Judge 

TITLE: 22nd Quarterly Judicial Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85

Item 5.



        JAN. FEB. MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG. SEPT. OCT. NOV. DEC. TOTAL

New Cases Filed

Ticket Count 4316 4568 2695 456 2050 2992 3355 3739 3639 3819 3466 2886 37981

Arraignments

Misdemeanor 237 256 172 102 153 154 140 180 184 185 159 233 2155

Felony 246 204 171 91 111 163 171 175 202 209 212 206 2161

Class C 1430 1511 645 112 134 330 180 222 252 444 234 201 5695

Trial by Judge

Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Scheduled 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Trial by Jury*

Actual 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Scheduled 23 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23

Arrest Warrants Issued

Class C 3718 3094 914 0 0 6104 1650 1656 1611 1540 2299 2244 24830

Misdemeanor 26 42 23 26 27 28 45 29 33 36 21 28 364

Felony 62 58 63 45 53 62 51 73 74 55 46 52 694

Search Warrants Issued

Search 20 30 23 5 27 42 12 22 22 34 24 15 276

DWI Blood 20 27 20 15 21 15 17 26 15 24 23 19 242

Emergency Protective

Orders 14 24 35 18 23 21 23 17 14 21 21 23 254

Hearings

Animal 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 4

Property 1 0 0 0 0 0 24 8 0 5 0 4 34

Indigent** 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

No Probably Cause 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 5

Juvenile***

Traffic Cases 49 41 37 12 23 25 38 17 37 53 48 19 399

Penal Cases 31 15 17 20 23 19 10 15 17 5 11 5 188

(Alcohol, Theft, Curfew, etc.)

* - Per the Office of Court Administration, no jury trials are allowed in municipal and JP courts until at least 04/01/21.

** - Due to COVID-19, the Court is not currently having in-person hearings to determine indigency for the purpose of

ordering Community Service (CS). Instead, the defendant's Indigency Application paperwork is reviewed by  the Judge 

and CS is granted upon a determination of indigency.

*** - Juvenile dockets require both the juvenile and parent/guardian to appear in Court and are currently being re-scheduled.

JUDICIAL ACTIVITY REPORT

January 2020 - December 2020

86

Item 5.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Andrew Fortune 

PRESENTER: Andrew Fortune, Manager of Legislative Affairs 

TITLE: Rental Assistance Update Presentation 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Rental Assistance Update Presentation 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

87

Item 6.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Amanda Maron 

PRESENTER: Patricia Redfearn, Solid Waste and Recycling Manager 

TITLE: Garbage and Recycling Collection Service Delivery Survey 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

EnterTextHere 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

EnterTextHere 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88

Item 7.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Steve Collins  

PRESENTER: Steve Collins, Code Compliance Manager and Mark Dempsey, Deputy 

City Attorney  

TITLE: Short Term Rentals  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: N/A 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89

Item 8.


	Top
	Item 1.	Public Safety, Health and Environment Meeting Minutes
	February PSHE Communication Form
	PSHE 2021 01 04 Minutes

	Item 2.	STEP Comprehensive Grant
	2022 STEP Comprehensive Grant
	2022 Proposal for STEP

	Item 3.	2022 STEP CVE Grant
	2022 Proposal STEP CVE
	2022 STEP CEV Grant

	Item 4.	Less-Lethal Shotgun Purchase
	ITEM-Less-Lethal Shotgun Purchase
	21004 - Evaluation Score Card

	Item 5.	22nd Quarterly Judicial Report
	Communications Form (2)
	22ND PSH&amp;E QUARTERLY REPORT

	Item 6.	Rental Assistance Update
	Rental Assistance Update

	Item 7.	Garbage and Recycling Collection Service Delivery Survey
	Garbage and Recycling Collection Service Delivery Survey

	Item 8.	Short Term Rentals
	Short Term Rentals 02.01.2021

	Bottom

